
 

 

JMG Ref:   173021PH 

Council Ref:   PLN-21-471 

 

7th November 2022 

 

 

Mr Ben Ikin 

Hobart City Council 

Via Online Development Services Portal 

 

Attention: City Planning 

 

Dear Mr Ikin 

 

APPLICATION NO. PLN-21-471 - 175 CAMPBELL STREET & 177 CAMPBELL STREET & 
179 CAMPBELL STREET & 169-173 CAMPBELL STREET, HOBART - PARTIAL 
DEMOLITION, ALTERATIONS, NEW BUILDING FOR 26 MULTIPLE DWELLINGS, FOOD 
SERVICES, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, GENERAL RETAIL AND HIRE, AND 
SUBDIVISION (LOT CONSOLIDATION) 

  

In further response to the representations and the officers comments in the draft 
agenda we would like the following considered in the future agenda report: 

 

1. Flood Risk – Council’s External Consultant’s Assessment 

There is much weight in the draft agenda placed on the external consultants 

assessment of the risk to uses of the car park particularly related to Clause E15.7.4 

and E7.1.1. 

• If there are inconsistencies in the water quality assessment is presented as 

suggested this should have been resolved at the RFI stage. MUSIC modelling was 

provided with the application which is the standard approach to water quality 

assessment in the State. The consultant clearly has no issue with water quality 

as they conclude this can simply be conditioned (ref 6.24.5).  

• The subconsultant states the overland flow path has not been provided, which 

is untrue as they are clearly shown in Figures 4 and 5 of the Flussig report. The 

car park area of the building has been specifically designed to allow overland 

flow and the inlets and outlets are modelled (Figures 8 & 9 of the Flussig 

report)(ref 6.25.5). 

• The consultant assumes because HIPS defines a habitable building as a building 

Class 1-9 in the BCA and as the car park is a class 7a building under the National 

Construction Code not all habitable floors are above the 1% AEP flood level then 

the proposal fails A4 and must therefore be refused. However, under the NCC 

categories certain elements are not considered ‘habitable’ so whilst the 

Planning Scheme may define the building as a ‘habitable building’ it does not 



  

Page 2 

 

follow that an basement car park needs to be built above the 1%AEP flood level 

(ref 6.25.5 & 6.25.6 & 6.32.5). A copy of this advice is attached. 

• The consultant states there are no discussion of alternate options for managing 

flood risks – this is untrue as specific recommendations were provided in the 

JMG report to manage flood risk including alarms, signage, vehicle access 

barriers, on site managers etc. The consultants later reference these measures 

in their comments (ref 6.32.5).  

• The consultant then continues to state there is no discussion on the time it takes 

to become hazardous then concludes without knowing this, that 9.5 minutes is 

too short for any flood emergency plan to be appropriately implemented.  A risk 

hazard assessment has been undertaken buy risk assessors under the WHS Act 

and the risk found to be acceptable subject to flood management measures. It 

is our view that if the risk is acceptable under the WHS Act then it meets the 

test whereby the risk to users is acceptable. A copy of this risk assessment is 

attached (ref 6.32.5). 

• The consultant suggests that an evacuation timeline should have been 

submitted, but this was not requested of the applicant (ref 6.32.5).  

• Damage to cars is not the test under the scheme provision and the Flussig Report 

discusses that in a flood event cars may cause structural damage (and thus the 

structure should accommodate this). Likewise insurance is also not relevant (ref 

6.32.5). 

• The consultant advises that they have only undertaken a high level review of 

flood management maps, notes that a flood behaviour map/flood afflux map is 

needed then concludes there isn’t enough information to address P1. A 

modelling file was provided to Council. Again if more information was required 

this should have been requested in the RFI process and if Council cannot 

interrogate flood modelling data the applicant should not be penalised for it 

(ref 6.32.5 & 6.33.5).  

 

2. Flood Risk – Council Officers Conclusion 

The officers conclude: It is our opinion that the management measure proposed 

(emergency management plan) is not appropriate for this situation. Even if a 

detailed flood emergency plan could be developed, there would be a problem 

enacting the plan as the time required to enact the plan would be far longer than 

the flood response time (ref 7.4).   

• This opinion is based on a simple assumption that a Flood Management Plan 

could not be executed in the short 8.5 minute duration between 50mm of water 

in the basement and it reaching critical levels. In our view, this ignores the flood 

hazard warning systems that give notice hours or days in advance. The 

Australian Disaster Resilience Handbook Collection Flood Warning Manual 21 

states: 

“Flooding is a highly manageable hazard where the flood risk can be defined, 

and appropriate emergency preparedness and mitigation strategies developed. 

Floods happen often in Australia and, in some areas, according to a regular 

seasonal rhythm. Their location is predictable and there is usually some 

warning of their occurrence. Much can be known about flooding and its 

consequences in advance; thus it is possible to determine who will be affected 
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and what problems they will face. Because of this, the opportunity exists to 

work out ahead of time (i.e. to plan) how a flood can best be managed in the 

interests of maximising public safety and minimising property and other 

damage”. 

 

• The Workplace Health and Safety review makes a number of recommendations 

that were not covered in the JMG recommendation which should be included in 

a Flood Emergency Management Plan. 

 

3. Height 

Since the lodgement of the application we have become aware that the Draft Precinct 

Plan is close to being finalised and is recommending a height limit of 18m for this 

area. The building height on the current set of plans is 23.1m but is exacerbated by 

the pitched roof design rising towards the lowest part of the site. By repitching these 

roof angles substantial reductions in the building could be achieved. If Council alters 

position on the stormwater issues discussed above, we are happy to redesign to give 

greater accuracy as to the building height reduction that could be achieved.  

We trust this information can be considered in the future agenda we would be grateful, 
however, if further information or clarification is required, please contact me on 6231 
2555 or at planning@jmg.net.au. 

 

Yours faithfully  

JOHNSTONE McGEE & GANDY PTY LTD 

 

Mat Clark 
PRINCIPAL/SENIOR TOWN PLANNER   

mailto:planning@jmg.net.au
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Flooding Risk Assessment 
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5. Recommendation Details 
 

To enable efficient implementation of the above risk controls, and therefore to achieve safety for the 

proposed use of the basement, the following details will assist.  

a. The systems implemented in buildings vary (e.g., SCADA, BMS and others). The system chosen at 

Campbell Street should be, if practicable, connected to emergency services such that early warning 

of a flood event is communicated to building management, on- or off-site security, and a mimic 

panel. 

b.  Training should emphasize staff and contractors. Regular drills will involve residents as well. 

c. An Emergency Evacuation Plan will already be established based largely on foreseeable events 

which threaten life safety, principally fire.  For simplicity and ease of use, the potential for an H5 (or 

other) flood can be included in this document. It is not recommended that the Emergency 

Evacuation Plan be duplicated. 

d. It is generally preferred by emergency services that public use of lifts is banned during an 

emergency. Programming the control system of the lifts to prevent persons going into the basement 

from the lifts may be considered, but only if this is to the agreement/acceptance of TFS and other 

emergency authorities. 

e. Emergency door location is recommended, and is optional, as it must be to the agreement of the 

Building Surveyor and to any structural engineering requirements. 

f. As the roller door is a security-controlled entrance, it will normally be closed, and the means to 

open it will be restricted to authorized persons (e.g., mainly residents, who will use a device such as 

a key fob to open the roller door from their car). This level of convenience may not be available to 

persons needing to escape, therefore the two recommendations of: 

i. a Flood Detection Sensor/Float Switch, which should be located where tampering is not 

possible, and/or 

ii. a Break Glass door-opening system, which could be connected to similar systems elsewhere 

in the building 

g. As this kind of signage is not statutory, it does not necessarily need to be in a standard color or 

typeface, and need only be clearly readable, so it could be in a similar style to other signage used 

within the project.  

h. CCTV cameras can most efficiently be placed in locations that provide coverage to places of 

seclusion.  

i. Flood emergency kits should be located so as not to encourage tampering.  

j. Location and number of DDA-compliant facilities and AS-1428-compliant parking spaces will be as 

per the requirements of the Building Surveyor/Accessibility Consultant. 

k. Stairs that may become submerged as a result of an H5 flood event will need specific design 

consideration, to ensure that no component comes loose in a flood event. This is only likely to be an 

issue in the case of building fabric which is not cast-in concrete; for example: bolted-in steel treads, 
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Appendix A- Risk Matrix 
 

 Probability      
A B C D E      

   Almost Certain Likely Possible Unlikely Rare      

   
Possibility of 

Repeated 
Incidents 

Possibility of 
isolated 
incidents 

Possibility of 
occurring 
sometime 

Not likely to 
occur 

Practically 
impossible 

     

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e
s

 

1 Catastrophic Extreme Extreme Extreme High High 

 

Extreme 
Intolerable, engineering required to 

reduce risk level 

2 Major Extreme Extreme High High Medium 

 

High 
Tolerable, with safeguards, monitor 

and proactively try to reduce risk 
wherever possible 

3 Moderate Extreme High Medium Medium Medium 

 

Medium 
Tolerable, with safeguards, monitor 

and review to reduce risk 

4 Minor High Medium Medium Low Low 

 

Low 
Acceptable, manage with procedures, 

continuous improvement 

5 Negligible Medium Low Low Low Low 
     

             

   Health & Safety Assets Reputation Financial Environmental      

  
Catastrophic Many Fatalities $10 Million 

International 
Media 

Corporate 
Large 

Community      

  
Major Single Fatality $1 Million National Media 

Region / 
Affiliate 

Small 
Community      

  
Moderate Many Injuries 

$100 
thousand 

Local Media Division / Site Minor 
     

  Minor Single Injury $10 thousand Some Media Other Minimal to None      

  Negligible LTI $1 thousand No Media Negligible None      
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ATTACHMENT B 

NCC Advice 


